
Please ask for:

Direct dial:
(023) 9254 5340
Fax:
(023) 9254 5587
E-mail:

2nd November 2020

S U M M O N S

MEETING: Climate Change Board
DATE: 12 November 2020
TIME:: 6.00 pm
PLACE: Virtual
Democratic Services contact: Linda Coote

PAUL GRANT
BOROUGH SOLICITOR & MONITORING OFFICER

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

Councillor Hook (ex-Officio)
Councillor Mrs Huggins (Mayor) and Councillor Jessop (Chairman)

Councillor Mrs Morgan (Vice-Chair)

Councillor Mrs Batty
Councillor Blackman
Councillor Carter
Councillor Casey
Councillor Chegwyn
Councillor Mrs Cully
Councillor Earle

Councillor Mrs Hook
Councillor Hylands
Councillor Johnston
Councillor Mitchell
Councillor Pepper
Councillor Raffaelli

Public Document Pack



NOTE:

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak. 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting.

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 
consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded. 



Climate Change Board
12 November 2020

AGENDA

RECOMMENDED 
MINUTE FORMAT

1.  APOLOGIES FOR NON ATTENDANCE 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

All members are required to disclose at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this meeting.

3.  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE CLIMATE 
CHANGE BOARD (Pages 1 - 4)

4.  DEPUTATIONS 

(NOTE: the Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on 10TH November 2020 .The total time 
for deputations in favour and against a proposal shall not exceed 10 
minutes)

5.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS- STANDING ORDER 3.5 

(NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such Question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on 10th 
November 2020)

6.  PROGRESS ON CLIMATE CHANGE  MOTION (Pages 5 - 10)

This report sets out the progress that has been achieved against the 
Climate Change Motion that was passed at Community Board on 4th 
March 2020. 

7.  COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (Pages 11 - 18)

This report sets out the proposals for the Council’s Climate Change 
Community Engagement Framework to reflect the aspirations 
contained in the Climate Change Motion that was passed at 
Community Board on 4th March 2020. 



Climate Change Board
12 November 2020

8.  ANY OTHER ITEMS 



Climate Change Board
17 September 2020

1

A MEETING OF THE CLIMATE CHANGE BOARD
WAS HELD ON 17 SEPTEMBER 2020

Councillor Hook

Councillors Mrs Huggins, Mrs Batty, Blackman, Carter, Casey, Chegwyn, Mrs Cully, Earle, 
Mrs Hook, Hylands, Jessop, Johnston, Mitchell, Mrs Morgan and Pepper

1. APOLOGIES FOR NON ATTENDANCE 

An apology for non attendance was received from Councillor Raffaelli.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were none.

3. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

There were none.

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS- STANDING ORDER 3.5 

There were none.

5. AIR QUALITY CYCLING PRESENTATION 

By reason of special circumstances, the Chairman determined that the following item be 
considered at this meeting notwithstanding the fact that the item had not been available for 
public inspection in accordance with the provisions of Section 100B(4)(a) of the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985.

Members viewed a presentation by Clare Dowling of Sustrans South and welcomed the 
news that Gosport Borough Council would join the project during September with the staff 
travel survey being distributed around month end.

6. ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS OF CLIMATE CHANGE ON LOCAL HABITATS 

Consideration was given to a report by Councillors Jessop and Mitchell requesting in 
accordance with Standing Order 3.7.2 for this issue to be considered at the Climate Change 
Board and that the Board approves the establishment of a task and finish group.

The Chairman asked that the wording in item 2.4 should be amended to read “not more 
than six months”.

Members wished to recognize the work that had gone into producing the report.

Members stressed the need for the work and actions of the task and finish group to be 
linked into the strategy of the Climate Change Board, and its output to be monitored and 
measured with KPIs.

Agenda Item 3



Climate Change Board
17 September 2020

2

Members hoped that the new Climate Change Officer would forge relationships with the 
appropriate external agencies to define accountability and ensure the work of the task and 
finish group is sustained in the long term. 

RESOLVED:

That the Board approves the establishment of a task and finish group to consider:

i. external agencies and organisations that the Council should directly consult 
and engage on this matter

ii. actions that the Council is able to procure or carry out itself or with partners in 
relation to the issue

and to report back to the Climate Change Board in no more than six months on the 
outcomes of the task and finish group’s work.

7. CLIMATE CHANGE UPDATE 

Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Corporate Policy and Community safety 
which provided Members an update on progress on the Climate Change Action Plan.

Members thanked the Officer for a clear report with a targeted and precise Action Plan, and 
congratulated her on the achievements to date which included the Green Travel Strategy 
and the Summer Passport where young people of the Borough were able to learn about 
climate change.

Members were advised that a Climate Change Officer had been recruited and would be 
starting at the beginning of October and would be introduced to Members.

Members were pleased to see that the report included the opportunity to embed climate 
change into a ‘green recovery’ and suggested that a link was formed with Action 
Hampshire’s Build Back Better strategy.

Members asked if data had been produced to monitor any reduction in the energy usage of 
the Town Hall during the lockdown period, and if there were any plans to install a plumbed 
in water supply to reduce plastic usage.

Members were pleased to see that supporting habitat gain featured on the action plan, and 
hoped for more in house control on planting.

RESOLVED:

That the Board note this report.

8. ANY OTHER ITEMS 

There were none.

CHAIRMAN



Climate Change Board
17 September 2020

3

Concluded at 7.00 pm



This page is intentionally left blank



Board/Committee: Climate Change Board
Date of meeting: 12/11/2020
Title: Progress on Climate Change Motion 
Author: Julie Petty, Head of Corporate Policy and Community Safety
Status: For Noting

Purpose

This report sets out the progress that has been achieved against the Climate Change 
Motion that was passed at Community Board on 4th March 2020. 

Recommendation

That the Board notes this progress update.

1.0 Background

1.1 The Community Board passed a Climate Change Motion on 4th March 2020.

1.2 The Climate Change Board has since been established which provides the 
governance arrangements for the Council’s approach on Climate Change. 

2.0 Report

2.1 Progress on the Climate Change Motion has been reviewed and is shown in 
Appendix 1. 

2.2 Overall progress has been good with the majority of the elements of the 
motion achieved or in progress.

2.3 There are only two outstanding elements of the motion.

The first element is ‘Call on the UK Government to provide the powers, 
resources and help with funding to make this possible, and ask our MP to 
do likewise’. This could be achieved by the Board Chairman sending a letter 
to our MP and to make the necessary representations to Government as 
when appropriate. The Board Chairman, before progressing this action and 
including it in the Climate Change Action Plan, wanted to make Members 
aware of this proposed approach.

The second element is ‘review the Council’s investment strategy to give due 
consideration to climate change impacts in the investment portfolio.’ The 
Council’s investment strategy review is due March 2021 so the Climate 
Change Acton plan will be updated to include this action.

2.4 A Community Engagement Framework Report is being presented to this 
Board which will provide a more detailed update on motion elements 5, 6 
and 7. 

Agenda Item 6



3.0 Conclusion

3.1 Progress against the Climate Change motion is outlined which the Board is 
asked to note.

Financial Services comments:
Legal Services comments: Contained within the report.
Equality and Diversity: N/A
Climate Change implications: Progressing the Climate Change Motion has a 

positive impact on the Council’s Climate Change 
Activity. 

Crime and Disorder: N/A
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

Actions required are already integrated into 
Service Plans.

Corporate Plan:
Risk Assessment: Failure to achieve the motion could generate a 

risk in delivery of the Council’s strategic 
approach towards Climate Change.

Background Papers: No
Appendices: Appendix 1
Report Author/Lead Officer: Julie Petty



APPENDIX 1

Climate Change Motion Update

The table below details the Climate Change Motion (by individual statement)  how this is achieved and progress status.

Statement How achieved Status
1. Declare that ‘Climate Change is 

real’ and requires urgent action
Approval of this motion underpins this ethos Complete

2. Prioritise the work of the Climate 
Change Working Group

The establishment of the Climate Change Service Board, 
within the Council’s formal reporting structure achieves 
this

Complete

3. Incorporate the CCWG Strategy 
in its approaches to planning 
decisions

Work on the revised Local Plan is ongoing but Members 
are reminded that planning decisions must be in 
accordance with the Development Plan (incorporating 
the Local Plan) as a matter of law. 

In progress

4. Ensure that political and chief 
officer/section head leadership 
teams embed this work in all 
areas and take responsibility for 
reducing, as rapidly as possible, 
the carbon emissions resulting 
from the Council’s activities

The Climate Change Action Plan is reviewed by  Chief 
Officer/Section Head Leadership Team and forms part of 
the Council’s work for review by the Climate Change 
Board, which provides political leadership.
An integrated Impact Assessment is also being 
developed to ensure due consideration is given to this 
issue on every Board report.

In progress

5. Take steps to proactively include 
young people in the process, 
ensuring that they have a voice in 
shaping the future

This is being developed as part of the Climate Change 
Community Engagement Strategy

In progress

6. Develop a Citizens’ Assembly in 
order to involve the wider 
population in this process. This 
group would help develop their 
own role, consider the latest 
climate science and expert 

This is being developed as part of the Climate Change 
Community Engagement Strategy

In progress



advice on solutions and to 
consider systematically the 
climate change impact of each 
area of the Council’s activities

7. Establish a Climate Change 
Partnership group, involving 
Councillors, residents, young 
citizens, relevant experts, 
businesses, Citizens Assembly 
representatives and other 
relevant parties. It will also 
recommend ways to maximise 
local benefits of these actions in 
other sectors such as 
employment, health, transport 
and the local economy

Concept included in the Climate Change Engagement 
Strategy

In progress

8. Report on the level of investment 
in the fossil fuel industry that our 
pensions plan and other 
investments have, and review the 
Council’s investment strategy to 
give due consideration to climate 
change impacts in the investment 
portfolio

HCC to provide information with regard to pension 
investment.

GBC will review its investment strategy.1

In progress regarding 
pension plan.

Action required: GBC 
review the Council’s 
investment strategy to 
give due consideration 
to climate change 
impacts in the 
investment portfolio

1 GBC short term investments are deposited with financial institutions and it has no investments backed by ownership in a company



9. Work with, influence and inspire 
partners across the Borough, 
County and region to help deliver 
this goal

This is an aspirational statement and will be delivered 
through the Climate Change Action Plan

N/A

10. Call on the UK Government to 
provide the powers, resources 
and help with funding to make 
this possible, and ask our MP to 
do likewise

Chairman of the Board to write to MP/relevant 
Government Department 

Action required: 
suggested approach - 
Chairman of the Board 
to write to MP/relevant 
Government 
Department



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Board/Committee: Climate Change Board
Date of meeting: 12/11/2020
Title: Climate Change Community Engagement Framework 
Author: Julie Petty, Head of Corporate Policy and Community Safety
Status: For discussion

Purpose

This report sets out the proposals for the Council’s Climate Change Community 
Engagement Framework to reflect the aspirations contained in the Climate Change 
Motion that was passed at Community Board on 4th March 2020. 

Recommendation

That the Board provide their views on the matters contained in this report, specifically 
paragraph 3.1, to enable a Climate Change Community Engagement Framework to 
be produced.

1.0 Background

1.1 The Community Board passed a Climate Change Motion on 4th March 2020.

1.2 This motion contained three community engagement elements and it is 
proposed that these will be delivered through a Community Engagement 
Framework:

 Motion item 5: “Take steps to proactively include young people in the 
process, ensuring that they have a voice in shaping the future.”

 Motion item 6: “Develop a Citizens’ Assembly in order to involve the wider 
population in this process.  This group would help develop their own role, 
consider the latest climate science and expert advice on solutions and to 
consider systematically the climate change impact of each area of the 
Council’s activities.”

 Motion item 7: “Establish a Climate Change Partnership group, involving 
Councillors, residents, young citizens, relevant experts, businesses, 
Citizens Assembly representatives and other relevant parties. It will also 
recommend ways to maximise local benefits of these actions in other 
sectors such as employment, health, transport and the local economy.”

2.0 Report

2.1 Community engagement is particularly important for issues such as Climate 
Change, which are inherently complex, have many points of interaction with 
other policy areas, involve significant policy changes, and require substantial 
behaviour change. 

Agenda Item 7



2.2 To ensure effective and efficient delivery of community engagement and the 
Climate Change motion, an engagement framework is proposed (see 
Appendix 1 for initial draft). 

The attached framework is a draft version for discussion by the Board, and 
will be updated based on feedback from the Board.

2.3 The Climate Change Motion has 3 specific references to Community 
engagement and it is important to understand the purpose of each element 
so that a cohesive and effective framework is implemented.

2.4 Element 5 of the motion is:

Take steps to proactively include young people in the process, ensuring that 
they have a voice in shaping the future.

This is reflected in the Climate Change Community Engagement 
Framework. It should also be noted that opportunities such as virtual youth 
engagement sessions (due in October as a follow on from Summer 
Passport) will be utilised to gather feedback and participants. 

2.5 Element 6 of the Motion is:

 Develop a Citizens’ Assembly in order to involve the wider population 
in this process. This group would help develop their own role, 
consider the latest climate science and expert advice on solutions 
and to consider systematically the climate change impact of each 
area of the Council’s activities. 

The wording of this motion implies an ongoing process; however, this does 
not align with the model of Citizens’ Assemblies: which run for a fixed time 
period (for example over two weekends) with its recommendations being 
used to shape policy and practice. Costs of a Citizens’ Assembly are 
dependent on specific purpose and associated design and can range from 
£30,000-£100,000.

2.6 The Board’s specific purpose for a Citizens’ Assembly and its role is sought 
including the detail of the likely issue/s that will be subject to this process. 

A methodology and design can then be explored along with costings which 
can be reported back to this Board. 

2.7 Element 7 of the Motion is:

Establish a Climate Change Partnership group, involving Councillors, 
residents, young citizens, relevant experts, businesses, Citizens Assembly 
representatives and other relevant parties. It will also recommend ways to 
maximise local benefits of these actions in other sectors such as 
employment, health, transport and the local economy.



The core purpose of this group, outlined above, seems to be to making 
recommendations to other sectors. To enable this it would need to have a 
high degree of expertise, significant resource and be viewed as a valid ‘body’ 
by all sectors. 

Some Local Authorities have set up Climate Change Partnerships which 
include key players (private, public and voluntary sector) which provide 
‘sounding boards’ and facilitation of action across organisations and within 
the community. This is based on partnership working not through the 
establishment of a more formal recommendation mechanism and the 
former is the suggested way forward. 

3.0 Conclusion

3.1 Board views on elements of the Climate Change Motion (6 and 7) are sought 
for integration into the final Climate Change Engagement Framework:

 The specific purpose for a Citizens’ Assembly and its role including 
the detail of the likely issue/s that will be subject to this process.

 If Climate Change Partnership approach suggested in para 2.6 
meets the intended Board requirements.

Financial Services comments:
Legal Services comments:
Equality and Diversity: The Climate Change Community Engagement 

Framework will be inclusive and maintain due 
regard to the public sector equality duty 
contained in Section 149 of the Equality Act 
2010.

Climate Change implications: A Climate Change Community Engagement 
Framework has a positive impact on the 
Council’s Climate Change Activity. 

Crime and Disorder: N/A
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

Actions required are already integrated into 
Service Plans.

Corporate Plan: The Climate Change Community Engagement 
Framework will help the Council to deliver 
effective services, empower residents and 
enhance the environment.

Risk Assessment: Failure to develop a Climate Change 
Community Engagement Framework could 
generate a risk in delivery of the Council’s 
strategic approach towards Climate Change.

Background Papers: No
Appendices: Appendix 1 
Report Author/Lead Officer: Julie Petty



APPENDIX 1

Climate Change Community Engagement Framework

Introduction

Community engagement is particularly important for issues such as climate change, 
which are inherently complex, have many points of interaction with other policy 
areas, involve significant policy changes, and require substantial behaviour change.

There are many approaches to engagement, with differing aims, strengths, 
weaknesses, risks and costs.  This Climate Change Community Engagement 
Framework therefore sets out how the Council will aim to carry out engagement 
around the actions needed to mitigate and adapt to climate change.

In general terms, “engagement” refers to any relationship between the Council and 
relevant stakeholders.  Relevant stakeholders will depend on the issue at hand, but 
may include all residents of the Borough as well as businesses and other 
organisations that have an interest in activities taking place in the Borough or which 
the Council is involved in delivering.  Young people are considered particularly 
important stakeholders in relation to action on climate change, since they will be 
most affected by its impacts.

Engagement methods and principles

The Climate Change Community Engagement Framework includes a range of 
engagement methods.   One way to organise these is by considering the degree to 
which each method empowers stakeholders to influence and participate in the 
design, implementation and evaluation of policies, services and initiatives.  This is 
shown in table 1 below.

In practice, engagement activities will usually utilise several of these methods which 
will complement each other.  For example, a successful Citizens’ Assembly might 
require not just involving assembly members in deciding on required changes, but 
also informing them of the science and policy background needed to make those 
decisions, consulting with residents beforehand to agree the questions the Citizens’ 
Assembly will consider, and informing residents of the Assembly, its deliberations 
and outcomes to increase legitimacy.



Table 1: Engagement methods

Method Aim Tools Examples

Informing

To raise awareness and 
understanding of existing 
policies, services and 
initiatives, and to help 
increase participation in 
other engagement 
activities.

- Websites and social 
media

- Newsletters
- Press releases
- Posters
- Leaflets
- Local meetings

- Coastline
- gosport.gov.uk 

website
- Planning application 

notices
- Meetings with 

residents

Consulting
To allow stakeholders to 
give their opinion on 
specific proposals.

- Surveys
- Consultation events

- Inviting responses 
to planning 
applications

- Local plan 
consultations

- Meetings with 
residents

Listening

To understand as fully as 
possible the needs, views 
and concerns of 
stakeholders, and to benefit 
from their ideas.

- Surveys
- Focus groups
- Stakeholder groups
- Councillor surgeries
- Social media
- Online community 

engagement tools

- HCC’s covid travel 
map and active 
places survey

- Youth forums, e.g. 
summer passport 
engagement 
activities

- School Councils

Involving
To involve stakeholders in 
the design, implementation 
and evaluation of policies, 
services and initiatives.

- Online community 
engagement tools

- Workshops
- Stakeholder groups

- HCC’s active places 
summits

- Citizens’ assemblies
- Participatory 

budgeting

Empowerin
g

To build stakeholders’ 
capacity and support them 
with funding, resources and 
expertise, so they can have 
partial or full control over 
and responsibility for the 
design, implementation and 
evaluation of policies, 
services and initiatives.

- Community 
enterprises

- Voluntary sector
- Cross-sector 

partnerships
- Stakeholder groups

There are several advantages to increasing stakeholder empowerment, including:

 benefitting from their lived experience and local knowledge;
 creating a sense of shared purpose which can encourage wider behaviour 

change;
 developing a better understanding in stakeholders of the limits to actions the 

Council can take and competing priorities;
 generating advocates of the policies developed;
 and increasing the reach and scope of the Council’s activities.

On the other hand, engagement activities with greater stakeholder empowerment 
can involve higher costs and require more time.  The desire to empower 

In
creasin

g
 em

p
o

w
erm

en
t



stakeholders can also conflict with constraints set by the need to follow expert 
advice, available budgets, existing commitments, or the need to coordinate with 
other Council activities.

The benefits of empowering stakeholders as fully as possible are dependent on 
ensuring that all stakeholders are identified so that engagement activities do not 
exclude people or organisations with an interest.  It is also important to be aware of 
power imbalances between stakeholders that have the potential to disempower 
some people or groups.  Engagement processes will be inclusive.

Good communication strategies are essential to successful engagement for several 
reasons.  Firstly, it is important to reach as many stakeholders as possible.  
Secondly, for less empowering forms of engagement, it is important that 
stakeholders’ expectations of the scope of the engagement are realistic, to avoid 
them becoming disillusioned which could lead to reduced participation in the future.  
Finally, for more empowering forms of engagement, it is important not only that 
stakeholders can influence the outcome, but also that they understand the influence 
they have had.

These considerations lead to the following eight principles which will inform all 
community engagement around climate change.

1. Aim to engage stakeholders in ways that empower them as much as 
possible, given time, cost and other constraints.

2. Communicate as clearly as possible the scope of each engagement 
activity, so that stakeholders fully understand how they will be involved and 
what they can and can’t influence.

3. Provide as much expert advice to stakeholders as possible to enable 
more comprehensive and effective engagement.

4. Carefully consider the stakeholders who should be involved in each 
engagement activity, to ensure that everyone with an interest in the outcome 
is included.

5. Proactively support stakeholders who might otherwise struggle to 
participate fully or have an equal voice in engagement activities, to 
ensure all stakeholders have sufficient opportunity to influence the outcome.

6. In particular, make every effort to engage with young people and ensure 
they can influence actions taken.



7. Feed back the outcome of engagement activities clearly and for as long 
as necessary to ensure that stakeholders understand the impact their 
involvement has had.

8. Identify and make use of best practice engagement practices both within 
Gosport Borough Council and in other councils and organisations.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE CLIMATE CHANGE BOARD
	6 PROGRESS ON CLIMATE CHANGE  MOTION
	7 COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

